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ANNIVERSARY

- 1970s

1971
State Senator Ron Mottl spearheads statewide lobbying effort.

May 8, 1973

February 1974
Operations begin.

Aug. 13, 1974
Buckeye 300, fisst weekly 50-cent game, goes on sale.

Oct. 27, 1974
Thistledown race track in Cleveland hosts first millionaire drawing.
Omar Watts becomes first millionaire.

Feb. 27, 1975
First TV show broadcast.

May 6, 1975
Lucky Buck, first weekly $1 game, goes on sale.

i June 24, 1976 _
First instant ticket scratch-off game, Ohio Instant Lortery, goes on sale.

Dec. 3, 1979
I The Number, Ohio’s first on-line game, goes on sale, 6 days a week.
It is now known as Pick 3.

Voters approve State Issuc #1, creating the Ohio Lottery, by a 3-1 margin.

INTRODUCTORY SECTION



To the Governor of the State of Ohio
The Ohio Lottery Commissioners and October 29, 1999
The Citizens of Ohio: '

The Ohio Lottery offers to you this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Ohio
Lottery Commission {the "Chio Lottery™) for the year ended June 30, 1999. The Finance
Division of the Ohio Lottery has prepared this report. The Lottery is an agency of the
State of Ohio. It was created in July of 1974 and is operated as a business enterprise
within the framework of the state laws and regulations. The Lottery's mission is to
maximize revenues to provide funds for the educational system of the State of Chio (the
“State”) by offering dignified games of chance to the public at large.

The Lottery is an enterprise fund of the State of Ohio and is included in the State's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Lottery activity is reported using the enterprise
fund type. That fund includes all activity for which the Ohio Lottery is financially
accountable. No data related to any other State agency or fund is included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents an overview of the Ohio Lottery.
The report follows formal standards of the Government Finance Officers Association.
Government organizations that publish this report can be compared ta each other
because similar kinds of information are included in these sections:

Introductory Section — includes this formal transmittal letter describing the Ohio Lottery
and its business activities, a list of principal officers, the Commission’'s organizational
chart and the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting awarded
tor the fiscal year 1998, This section 15 not audited because it contains subjective
information.

Financial Section — begins with the State Auditor's report foliowed by the comparative
financial statements for the Lottery, related notes to the financial statements and certain
supplemental schedules.

Statistical Section — contains selected financiai data inciuding trend data specific to the
Ohio Lottery. Additional information on the national lottery industry is also included.

The accuracy of the financial data and the compieteness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, is the responsibility of the Ohio Lottery Commission. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the Ohio Lottery. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the Lottery's financial activities have been included.

THE LOTTERY INDUSTRY

In 1964, New Hampshire established a state run Lottery to raise money for education. It
became the first state in the United States to enter the Lottery business. New York
followed in 1967. In 1971, New Jersey introduced a computer-based $.50 weekly game
which offered frequent drawings, inexpensive tickets, convenience of sale and a weekly
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prize of $50,000. New Jersey grossed $142.5 million in its first year and established a
new paradigm for the industry. New York and New Hampshire revamped their systems
and other states soon introduced lotteries using New Jersey's operation as a model.
Ohio implemented its Lottery in 1974,

Lotteries are now viewed by many as a passive form of taxation that generates revenue
for programs that benefit the public. To increase player involvement, state lotteries now
market games that feature faster play action and a greater degree of piayer participation.
Sales of tickets increased significantly in the early 80's. Today 37 states and the District
of Columbia operate lotteries using computer-based online games and instant “scratch
off’ games. More than 87% of the U.S. population resides in a state operating a lottery.

Many Americans believe that lotteries are a good way to raise public funds. In 1998,
GTECH, an international hardware and software vendor to the lottery industry,
conducted a national gaming survey. That summary showed that 72% of American
adults approve of lotteries, 70% had played lotteries in the last year, 69% prefer lotteries
to higher taxes and 76% believe lotteries create jobs.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

In the early 90's, the Lottery industry experienced double digit growth. From Fiscal Year
93 to Fiscal Year 97 the growth rate declined from 16% to 3.7%. In Fiscal Year 1998,
U.S. lottery sales increased just $63.4 million to $35.8 billion. The increase was .18%.
In Fiscal Year 1999, 11 of the 38 U.S. lotteries experienced a downturn in sales, ranging
from .1% to 16.5%. For the last four years, total U.S. lottery sales have shown only a
single-digit percentage growth over the previous year. The erosion of sales on core
online products, like daily numbers games, and the slow down of instant ticket sales
growth has had a significant impact on revenues. Total U.S. gaming revenue increased
in 1998 by 6.6%, a reflection on the strong economy and available disposable income.
Almost the entire increase, however, was in casino table and machine games.

For Lotteries, only states with Powerball and Video Lottery Terminals had substantive
sales increases in FY 1999. The same was true the previous year. Across the country, 4
digit games increased by .7%, 3 digit by .1%, Cash Lotto declined by 1.5% and Lotto
games declined by 2.1%. Instant tickets had a .7% increase. Overall, lottery sales
increased from $35.8 billion in Fiscal Year 98 to $36.5 billion in Fiscal Year 99. The
increase was 1.5%.

Record jackpots for Powerball and The Big Game helped states participating in those
multi-jurisdiction games to significantly increase sales over the last two years. Many
observers believe those record jackpots are a short-term sales boost that may become
the long-term demise of the rest of the industry.

For Ohio, total sales declined 2.3% from $2.195 billion in FY 98 to $2.144 billion in FY
99. Only Pick 4 had a sales increase and that was a very modest .9%. Pick 3 declined
by 5.1%, Buckeye 5 dropped by 4.9%, Kicker by 5.4% and Super Lotto by 5.3%. Instant
ticket sales stayed very near the FY 98 level. Sales were down by only $3 million from
$1.131 billion to $1.128 billion in FY 99.

U.S. lotteries have been operating in an outstanding economic climate. The end of
Fiscal Year 1999 marks 8.5 years of uninterrupted growth since the recession of early
1991. This economic cycie ‘has been marked by slow but steady growth. Interest rates
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dropped through most of FY 98 and FY 89. This has been good news for many
businesses and homebuyers. But, those interest rates have been a problem for pension
funds and lottery games with payouts over twenty-five years. Expenses have increased
greatly because more funds must be invested initially to ensure long-term prizes are
accumulated. The recent upward trend in interest rates may begin to ease some of that
pressure on prize expense. '

In addition to the factors affecting all U.S. lotteries and the economy, other factors
specific to the State of Ohio are having an impact on Ohio sates. Ohio is a mature
lottery that is celebrating its 25 year of operation as of August 1999. It has had a
mature and stable set of oniine games that have produced consistent results with sales
near $1.1 billion for over twelve years. Those games have not been changed for over
seven years. Customers are beginning to see them as passe’ and lacking excitement.
Sales are still very good but have declined from $1.168 billion in FY 96 to $1.105 billion
in FY 97 to $1.106 billion in FY 98 and now to $1.016 billion in FY 89. Pick 3 and Super
Lotto are the largest online games. Sales for these two games have declined
consistently over the last four years. The Lottery understands the need to revitalize the
online product. Action has been taken to boost sales in Pick 3 with a RedeBall
promotion at the end of FY 99 and the introduction of mid day draws in August 1899
Research on a change to the Super Lotto game is in progress. Action to reinvigorate the
remainder of the online product will follow the completion of these initial changes.

Gambling casinos are now open in Windsor and Niagara Falls, Canada. The MGM
Grand Casino opened just months ago in Detroit, Michigan. Riverboat casinos have
been opened in tllincis and Indiana. The Rising Sun and Argosy riverboat casinos in
Indiana are only twenty minutes from Ohio population centers of Cincinnati and Dayton.
West Virginia has Video Lottery Terminals at its racetracks. West Virginia, Kentucky and
Indiana all sell Powerball. There are many other gaming interests now available to Ohio
residents. Those gaming interests outside of Ohio spent over $14 million on advertising
in our state to bring Ohio players to their venues. Ohio had decreased spending on
advertising starting with FY 96 to increase efficiency and control costs. It must now
substantially increase advertising expenditures to effectively compete. The FY 2000
budget authorizes the Ohio Lottery to spend as much as $21.5 million on advertising.
This is an increase of $5.7 million.

The Ohio Lottery is well managed and one of the most successful lotteries in the U.S.,
ranking sixth of thirty-eight lotteries in FY 99 in total sales. During the year, the
International Gaming and Wagering Business magazine determined that the Ohio
Lottery was one of the four most efficiently and effectively run lotteries in the United
States. Sales per capita are good and costs are controlled. In spite of that, the growth
that occurred in FY 95 and 96 can not be sustained. Increased competition from a
number of sources has changed the outloock from growth to maintenance. Sales
dropped from a high of $2.314 billion in FY 96 to $2.300 billion in FY 97 to $2.195 billion
in FY 98. Sales declined again in FY 99 to $2.144 billion. Online sales have averaged
$1.1 billion for the past twelve years. Online sales peaked at $1.200 billion in FY 83,
then declined to a low of $1.016 billion in FY 99. From FY 93 to FY 97, instant tickets .
were the growth products. Sales jumped from $775 million in FY 93 to $1.032 billion in
FY 95 to $1.195 billion in FY 97. Revenue and the number of tickets sold increased
each year. That pattern changed in FY 97. Revenue went up with the addition of the $3
and $10 tickets. The number of tickets sold decreased from 889 million to 843 million.
In FY 98, revenue declined from $1.195 billion to $1.131 billion and the number of tickets
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sold declined further to 793 million. In FY 99 the Lottery was able to change that trend
with sales that almost equaled those of the previous year at $1.128 billion. In FY 2000,
the Lottery is adding many new instant tickets with new styles of play and increased
prize payouts. A sales increase is anticipated.

LOTTERY PRODUCTS ,

The Ohio Lottery provides the opportunity to participate in different games with two
styles of play, instant games and online games. Descriptions of the games and their
portion of sales follows:

INSTANT GAMES are played by scratching the latex covering off the play area on the
ticket. There are different ways to win in an instant or “scratch off” game, including
matching three like dollar amounts, symbols or letters. If the correct combinations
appear, the player becomes an “instant winner” and may immediately submit a claim to
cash the ticket. Instant games have recently become the Lottery’s dominant product. In
FY 92, instant games sold $584.2 million, 34.7% of the $1.685 billion in sales that year.
In FY 97, instant games had grown so that for the first time they accounted for more than
half of sales at $1.195 billion. In FY 99, 52.6% of sales came from the instant games.
Instant games had little growth until multiple game strategies were introduced. As many
as 48 games are now printed annually including seasonal games and special holiday
games. Instant games are sold for $1.00, $2.00, $3.00, $5.00 and $10.00. The $3.00
and $10.00 games were introduced in 1997 with the Ohio Lottery being the first U.S.
lottery ever to market a $10.00 instant game. A new $7.00 ticket will be added in FY
2000.

ONLINE GAMES allow the customer to pick the numbers for their wager or utilize
automatically computer-generated plays. They receive a ticket with the numbers
selected and must wait for a drawing to see if they have matched the numbers and won.

Super Lotto is generally considered Ohio’s most popular online game. The current
game in its 6/47 format (6 winning numbers are selected from 47), was introduced in
1991. Jackpots start at $4 million. The jackpot grows by at least $4 million increments if
there is no winner. Players have grown increasingly apathetic to jackpots of less than
$20 million. Sales increased from $370 million in 1994 to $455 milion in 1896. That
trend changed in 1997. Super Lotto sales dropped to $410 million, then to $384 million
in FY 98 and still further in FY 99 to $364 million. Sales for this game are dependent on
the jackpots offered. Sales for FY 95 and FY 96 were excellent with numerous large
jackpots. In FY 96, there were three $30 million jackpots and one for $36 million. In FY
97, jackpots did not reach those levels as often and sales declined. In FY 98, jackpots
were either very large or small. In FY 99, one jackpot reached $45 million. The
remainder was $24 million or less. Super Lotto accounted for 17.0% of sales in FY 99.
Drawings are held on Wednesdays and Saturdays.

The Kicker is an online game that can be purchased along with Super Lotto. To win the
top prize of $100,000, all six numbers must be matched in exact order. Lesser prizes
are awarded for 5 of 6, 4 of 6 and 3 of 6 matches. Kicker sales are the [owest for the
online games. Sales for FY 99 were $57.2 million, about 2.7% of sales.

Pick 3 was Ohio’s first online game. Players pick three numbers from 0 to 9 and can
play the numbers straight (numbers in exact order), boxed (numbers in any order) or as
backup bets (players can win either or both ways). In 1996, the Lottery premiered wheel
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wagering which altows a player to win all possible combinations of a Pick 3 wager. In
the past, Pick 3 has accounted for $420 to $450 million in annual sales. Sales for FY 98
were $421 million. Sales declined further in FY 99 to $398 mithon, approximately 18 6%
of total sales. :

Pick 4 is played like Pick 3 only players choose four numbers from 0 to 9 and may play
them straight, boxed or in back-up bets. Pick 4 began in 1981. Sales have increased
annually and topped $125.0 million in 1999. The game accounts for 5:8% of sales. Both
Pick 3 and Pick 4 are played Monday through Saturday.

Buckeye 5, a 5/37 online game was introduced in 1992 and has four drawings a week.
The game has better odds but lower payout than SuperLotto. Players select and must
match five numbers to win the top prize of $100,000. Buckeye 5 sales have dropped
since 1993. It generated $68.9 million in sales in FY 89, down 4.9% from FY 98 That
sales decline was less than experienced in the last two years.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Ohio Lottery has just completed the four best years on record. It has done what any
well managed business is supposed to do; produce high sales, keep expenses low and
maximize profit. '

. Sales for FY 96 were $2.314 billion, the highest ever. That was followed by FY
97 sales of $2.300 billion and FY 98 sales of $2.195 billion. In FY 99 sales were
$2 144 billion. Those are the four highest sales years ever for the Ohio Lottery.

. Operating expenses have been consistently held at low levels and as a
percentage of sales have been the lowest in Lottery history. Operating expenses
were only 3.9% in FY 96, 4.0% in FY 97 and 3.9% again in. FY 98. In FY 89
operating expense was again maintained at a low level, only $88.9 million or
4.1% of sales. Operating expenses were at the 5.0% + level in the years up to
and including FY 94. Lowered operating expense is the result of reductions in
personnel costs, telecommunications costs and advertising costs.

. With high sales and reduced costs, transfers to education have been maximized.
The Lottery provided $726.5 million to education in FY 96, $748.5 million in FY
97 and $723.8 million in FY 98. Payments to education had never previously
exceeded $660 million. In FY 99, the $700 million mark was narrowly missed.
Total payments to education were $696.3 million.

In addition to these quantitative accomplishments, the Lottery made continuing
improvements in the operational and administrative areas. Several of these
improvements are cited below:

. Developed and implemented a new Claims Information System. This system
significantly expands the Lottery’s ability to process and report on prize
payments. As part of the project, every claim ever paid was reviewed and
reconciled to ensure the accuracy of the database.
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. Stemmaed the decline in instant ticket sales by revising the ticket mix to meet our
customer’s desires, increasing prize payout, improving ticket distribution and
introducing new Instant ticket products such as “Cash & Cars”.

. Implemented the RedeBali promotion to the Pick 3 game. The promotion
increased prize payout on Pick 3 by approximately 20% any time a special red
bonus ball was selected. As part of this promotion, agent commitment to the
Pick 3 game was reinvigorated with the first agent incentive for performance
done in the last five years.

. Implemented a new payment plan that allows annuity winners of Super Lotto to
change to the cash option within 60 days of claiming. Established a new
administrative rule allowing past annuity winners to cash out their remaining
payments at a discounted iump sum. This program began July 1, 1999 and will
remain in force for the next 18 months. To date, nearly 300 winners have used
this option.

. Planned and executed actions needed to implement game enhancements and
new prizes in FY 2000. Based on those actions, the Lottery implemented mid
day draws for Pick 3 and Pick 4 on August 16, 1989. The Lottery also added a
new special prize to the Cash Explosion show that will be featured during the 25"
Anniversary; four-year college scholarships valued at $20,000 each.

. Completed work on the Year 2000 Project. All critical systems were remediated
and tested and deemed to be Y2K ready. The major administrative support
systems were also reviewed and made Y2K ready by June 30, 1999. An
independent validation and verification was performed by a subcontractor of the
State of Ohio who concluded that it is probable that the Ohio Lottery systems will
process dates accurately in the year 2000.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS AND POLICIES

The Ohio Lottery Commission operates three enterprise funds, which utilize the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies. The
Lottery manages the following funds:

#044 Lottery Operating Fund
Revenues for this fund are provided primarily from ticket sales. Expenses of this fund
represent primarily prize expenses (including transfers to the Deferred Prize Fund),
operating expenses and payments to the State education system.

#871 Deferred Prize Fund
Revenues for this fund are provided through cash transfers from the Lottery Operating
fund for the purpose of providing investment principal for funding long-term prize
obligations. Expenses of the Deferred Prize Fund primarily represent deferred prize
payments.

#872 Unclaimed Prize Fund
The Unclaimed Prize Fund receives cash transfers from the Lottery Operating fund each
month in an amount equal to the prizes unclaimed after the cashing eligibility has
expired. The balances in this fund are used for transfers to education to fund special

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998
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projects such as the computerization of all Ohio public schools and/or vouchered prize
payments for special games.

BUDGETARY CONTROL .

Budgetary control for all state agencies is maintained through legistative appropriations
and the executive branch allotment. An encumbrance system s utilized, whereby
purchase orders reserve portions of applicable appropriations. The appropriation and
the amount expended for #044 Lottery Operating Fund, #871 Deferred Prize Fund and
#872 Unclaimed Prize Fund are monitored by the Ohio Office of Budget and
Management (OBM). The adopted budget is divided among the operating departments
at the Lottery who have responsibility for delivery of service. These departments control
the funds within their program. The Finance Division monitors all accounts via the State
of Ohio Central Accounting System and its own accounting reporting system, Solomon.
Additionally, the Lottery conducted and published a Mid-Year Review in 1999 to show
revenue and expenditure trends and implement any changes necessary to keep both
within appropriation and under internal management targets set by the Director.

INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIROMENT

Management of the Lottery is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
controls designed to ensure that assets are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to
ensure that the accounting system allows for compilation of accurate and timely financial
information. Financial information must be reported at monthly public meetings of the
Ohio Lottery Commission. The structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance that these objectives are met.

To enhance controls over accounting procedures, the Ohio Lottery has segregated the
following functions: personnel and payroll, purchasing, accounts payable and general
ledger and accounts receivable processing. Additionally, a Contract Compliance Officer
monitors the procurement and execution of all large vendor contracts. Data input and
processing is separate from system programming. An internal audit team reviews all
areas of operations and reports to the Director. The internal audit role was expanded
and improved in 1997. At the beginning of Fiscal Year 1997 and for each Fiscal Year
since, an audit plan has been promulgated by the Lottery and approved by the Auditor of
State. Results of these internal audits have been submitted to the Auditor of State for
review and consideration in its financial audit. An Information Security manager
monitors and audits automated systems. An Electronic Data Program Audit Plan has
been established and is executed annually to further improve internal controls. The plan
for Fiscal Year 2000 has been approved and a contract to execute the plan has been
awarded.

Since the Lottery manages a valuable ticket inventory and controls the disbursement of
prizes, we take the following steps to ensure the operations remain honest and secure:

*Hiring a specialized security and law enforcement staff.

*Maintaining secure Lottery facilities and limiting access to them.

+Performing background checks on retailers, contractors and Lottery employees.
+Printing Lottery tickets with special paper, inks, dyes and security codes.

*Establishing and executing detailed procedures for all game drawings.

«Contracting with the Auditor of State as an independent witness to further ensure the
integrity of our drawings and the Cash Expiosion game show.
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*Providing a variety of access and other controls in our computer systems.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The OChio Lottery Commission operates as an enterprise activity: selling lottery tickets to
the general public and funding all related support activities from funds internally
generated. No general government functions or fiduciary operations are managed by
the Lottery or included in this report.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Lottery's long-term liabilities are limited to payments owed to deferred prizewinners.
The payments due are fully funded by an investment portfolio managed by the Treasurer
of the State of Ohio and shown as restricted assets of the Lottery on its balance sheets.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Lottery's excess cash is invested by the Treasurer of the State of Chio in U.S.
Treasury securities, repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptance and certificates of
deposit with qualified public depositories. [n addition, the Ohio Lottery, through the
Treasurer of State's Investment Department, participates in a securities lending program
to increase its overail return on invested funds. The lending program is administered by
a custodial agent bank, whereby certain securities are transferred to an independent
broker/dealer in exchange for collateral (principally consisting of cash or U.S.
government obligations).

The Lottery collects cash due from ticket sales from its 9,400 retail agents on a weekly
basis. Funds are electronically swept from the agents designated bank accounts. Over
$1.0 billion was collected via this system in 1999. Timely payment was made on 99.6%
of accounts owed. About $4.0 million was returned unpaid and recorded as non-transfer
of funds. Those agents were deactivated and could not sell tickets until payment was
received and posted. Over $2.6 million or 65% of that amount was paid within ten days.
Claims were made against agents’ bonds in 513 cases with payments totaling $1.2
million. This amount was certified to the Attorney General for collection. Bond
payments totaled $886,000 with agents paying an additional $359,000 at that time.
Sixty-three cases worth $128,000 were forwarded to the Attorney General for collection
when all other means failed.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Lottery is exposed to various risks of loss related to thefts, damage or destruction of
assets, injuries and natural disasters. The State’s risks management and insurance
program is controlled by the State Department of Administrative Services (DAS). The
Lottery pays a premium to DAS for professional and motor vehicle insurance. Retail
sales agents are required to carry a bond equal to one-month sales.

FUTURE PROJECTS

The games offered by the Ohio Lottery have been or are under review to determine
enhancements and changes needed. Initial changes have been implemented to the
Pick 3 and Pick 4 games at the outset of FY 2000. Additional game enhancements and
promotions for all online games and instant tickets are under review and will be
considered for implementation over the next two years.
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GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Ohio
Lottery for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award-recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government
financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report whose
contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generaily
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a one-year period. The Ohio Lottery has
received a Certificate of Achievement for the last two years (fiscal years ended 1997 and
1998). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of
Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Ohio statutes require an annua! audit of the Chio Lottery by an independent auditor.
The Auditor of State for the State of Ohio currently conducts the annual financial audits
of the Lottery Commission. The FY 98 and FY 99 audits of the Lottery's financial
statements have been completed in conformity with generally accepted auditing
standards. The auditor's unqualified opinion of the Lottery’s financial statements is
included in the financial section of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated efforts of the entire Finance Division. A special note of thanks is given to the
General Accounting Department headed by Greg Bowers; with the assistance of Michele
Qlivo and their staff members Jane Parker, Pam Schleicher, Anna Callas and Marian
Heine.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report reflects our commitment to improve the
Lottery's financial statements and record keeping systems to meet the highest standards
of accountability. The Ohio Lottery is committed to continually improving financial
management and clearly communicating its financial story. It is important for the public
to know that the Ohio Lottery's financial condition is properly reported including
payments made to education. Due credit should be given to Commission President
Sandra Barber and the members of the Lottery Commission for their commitment to
operating the Lottery in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully Submitted, w : E

Gale W. Fisk, Deputy Director of Finance Mitchell J. Brown, Executive Director
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COHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION

PRINCIPAL OQOFFICIALS « OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION

Bob Taft
Governor of Ohio

Donét D. Graves
Commissioner
Term ends; 8/1/2001

Gisela Rosenbaum
Commissioner
Term ends: 8/1/2000

Mitchell J. Brown
Director

David P. Miller
Commissioner
Term ends: &/1/2001

David Skylar
Commissioner
Term ends: 8/172000

Sandra K. Barber
Commisston Chair
Term ends: 8/1/2002

Walter Nagorny
Commissioner
Term ended: 8171949

Elden Spencer
Commissioner
Term ends: 8/1/2000

Andrew J. Futey
Commissioner
Term ends: &1/2001

Michele A. Roberts
Commissioner
Term ends: 8/1/2002
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Ohio Lottery
Commission

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1998

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Assocciation of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Executive Director
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ANNIVERSARY

1980s

April 1981
Pick 4 goes on sale.

April 9, 1983
Obio Lorto (6/40) goes on sale with Saturday drawing,.

July 1, 1983

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

State Legislature designates that Lottery profits are “earmarked for primary/secondary education.”

February 1984

Ohio becomes the first state lottery in the nation to to use EFT syscem for “paperless” agent payments.
pap B pay

QOctober 1984

Ohio Lotto goes to two draws a week — Wednesday & Saturday — with jackpot rollovers.

Fcb. ]9, 1986
Super Lotto (6/44) goes on sale, with Wednesday drawings.

July 1986
Quick Cash bank program begins.

Feb. 7, 1987
Lottery airs first Cash Explosion® TV show.

April 18, 1987
Super Lonto drawings go to Wednesdays and Saturdays.

March 17, 1988
Lawmakers create Lottery Profits Education Fund.

April 27, 1988
Kicker game goes on sale.

Sept. 18, 1988
TV show changes its name to Cash Explosion® Double Play.

FINANCIAL SECTION
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Lausche Building. 12" Floor
615 Supernor Avenue, N'W
Cleveland. Ohio 44113

. Telephone  216-787 3665
b ' .
JIM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE ROO-626-2207

Facsimile 216-787 3361
www.auditor state ch.us

STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Ohic Lottery Commission
615 Superior Avenue NW
Cleveland, Ohio 44113

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the Qhio Lottery Commission (the
Commission), an enterprise fund of the State of Ohio, as of and for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998. These
general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Commission’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable 10
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstaternent.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supponting the
amourts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Ohio Eottery Commission enterprise fund of the State
0f Ohio and are not intended 1o present fairly the financial position of the State of Ohio and the results of its operations
and cash flows of its proprietary fund types in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Commission as of June 30, 1999 and 1998. and the results of its operations and cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As described 1n Note 3 1o the accompanying general-purpose financial statements, duning fiscal year 1999 the
Commission changed its method of reporting cash flows.

tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 1999, on our
consideration of the Commission s internal control over financial reporting for this fund, and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracts and grants applicable to this fund.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financal statements of the
Commussion, taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such mformation has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the general-purpose financial statements and. in cur opinion. is tairly
presented. 1n all material respects, in relation o the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and therefore express no
opinton thereon.

JM PETRO
Auditor of State

October 29, 1999

13




OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION - COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT + FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION « COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET « JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

ASSETS: 1999 1998

Current Assets:

Cash  $362.657 20.116.147
Equity in State of Ohio common cash and investments 117.228.373 140,454 966
Collateral on lent securtires £6.361.921 107,111,470
Other investments 11,850,000 11.160.000
Receivables - Net of allowance for doubtful accounts 28,350.769 23.519.1%4
Prepaid eapenses and olher assets - §,834.205 6,416,529
Total Current Assets 249 987,927 308.778.306

Restricted Assets:

Equity 1n State of Ohio common cash and invesiments 39,276.000 22153312

Dedicated State of Ohio investments 1,351 .6595.094 1.397.217.746

Collateral on lent securitles 1.004 041,722 1255 785397

Interest receivable 10.159.091 15,904,137
Total Restricted Assets 2.405,171,907 2.691.120.592
Equipment:

Fixed assews - Net of accurnulated deprecialion 21.676.901 33.615.047
TOTAL ASSETS 52.6.76.836.735 $3.033.513.945

LLABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY:

Currend Liabilities - (Payable from current assets):

Obligations under securities lending program 386,361,923 5107111 470
Prize awards payable 20,077,115 19.431.075
Accounts and contracls payable ' 8.002,824 ) 9,458,989 -
Due other State of Ohwo entities 252.645 541,307
Other liabilies 1,429,560 1.359.859
Deferred revenue . 1.240.524 2.183.781
Currem portion of cquipment capilal lcasc obligation 1,000,879 © 13.482.255
Total Current Liabilities - (Payahde Irom current ascews) 118.365.070 153.568,736

Current Liabilities - (Payable from restricted assets):

Obligations under securitics tending program 1.004,041,722 1.255.785.397
Deferred prizes pavable - Net of unamomized discount 74,4237 68.634.327
Total Current Liabilities - (Payable from restricted assets) 1.078.984 094 1324419724

Long-Term Liabilities: .
Deferred prizes payable - Net of unamortized discou 1.282.77.730 1.289.128.21

Long-term poruion of equipment capuat lease obligation 2,190,762 3.191.652
Compensaled absences and other long-tcem habilites 1.997.23% 1.875.986
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1.286.965.729 1.294.195.909
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2.484.314.893 2.772.183.369

FUND EQUITY - Retained Earnings: .
Unreserved 149.111.759 183,756,979

Reserved - deferred prizes ‘24954379 24,362 568
174,066.138 208.119.547 -
Addwional Rescrve for Deferred Prizes - net unrcalized
appreciation on resiricied investmens 18.455.704 $3.210.02%
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 192.521.842 261.329.576
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $2.676.836.735 $3.033,513.945

The accompaming noles fo the financial statements are an infegral part of this siatement
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

REVENUE:
Ticket Szles

Qther Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

EXPENSES:

Prizes, Bonuses and Commission Expense:
Prize Awards
Bonuses and Commissions

Total Prizes, Bonuses and Commission Expense

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services
Maintenance
Depreciation
Other Expenses

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Imterest Income
Amortization of Deferred Prize Liabilities
Loss on Equipment Disposal
Interest Expense - Borrower Rebates
Agent Fees
Interest Expense on Capital Lease
Payments to the Lottery Profits Education Fund

Total Non-Operating Expenses
NET INCOME (LOSS)
RETAINED EARNINGS JULY 1

RETAINED EARNINGS JUNE 30

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1999 1998
$2,144,726,310 $2,195,796,964
5,772,502 5,367,020

2,150,498 ,812

2,201,163,984

1,259,766,338 1,244,715,121
134,614,180 137,845,726
1,394,380,518 1,382,560,847
54,333,881 49,815,293
20,795.857 22,472,353
13,631,498 14,048,171
137,570 204,050
38,898,806 86,539,867
667,219,488 732,063,270
121,518,451 225,083,909
{99,203,818) (100,689,547)
(230,551} (2,839,300}
(60,595,099) (68,334,075)
(618,278) (483,448}
(595,226) (1,725,841)
(696,302,701) (723,864,739)
(736,027,222) (672,853,041)
(68,807,734) 59,210,229
261,329,576 202,119,347
$192,521,842 $261,329,576
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FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 3D, 1999 & 1998

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION « COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

1999

1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Reccived from Customers
Cash Paymenus for Prize Awards
Cash Payments for Bonuses and Commissions
Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Cash Payments 1o Employees
Crher Operating Revenues
Other Operaung Eapenses

$2.138.951.478°

(1.259.162.794)

$2.213.173.146
(1.228,791,823)

Net Cash Provided by (used) in Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments to the Sate of Chio
inter-Fund Transfers
Amortization of Deferred Prize Lubiliry

Net Cash Provided {Used) by NonCapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisinon of Property and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale of Property apd Equipment
Repayment of Equipment Obligation
Interest Paid on Equipment Obligation

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment Income Recesved
Interest Expense (Borrower Rebates) and Agent Fees
Proceeds from the Sale or Matwrirty of Dedicated Suaie of Ohwo Investments
Acquisition of lnvestmens
Cash Collareral received under Secunties Lending Acuivities
Investment of Securittes Lending Cash Collateral

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD:

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH LUSED
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss}
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to net cash
provided {used) by operaung acuvities
Depreciation
Accounts Receivable
Prepaud Expenses and Other Assets
Prize Awards Payable
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Deferred Prize Awards Payable
Compensated Absences and Other Liabilines

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

(134,664 .002) {137.821,49)
(56.316,965) (52,125.112)
(19.803.701) (19.415,843)

5.772.502 . 5.367.020
(137.570) (204,050)
674, 630 948 780).181.389
(696,302,701) (723.864.739)
0 0
(99,203 818) (100,689, 547)
(795,506,519) (824,554.286)
(1.923.902) (3.012,226)
0 1,108,698
(13,482.266) (16.467,283)
(595.226) (1,725 841)
(16,001 394) (20.096.652)
117,954,043 137,940,853
61.213.377) {68.817,523)
816,620,474 $24.518,280
(761.659.570) (493 444,021}
1.090.403 645 1,362.896,867
(1.090,403.645) (1,362 896,867}
111,701,570 100,197.589
(25.167.395) 35,728.040
193 834 425 158.156_385

$168.717.030 $193.884 425

667,219.488 732,063,270
13,631,498 14,048,171
(4.831,57%) 17.478,211

513,527 (2.236,871)
646,040 2.906.894
(1.456.565) 3.376.953
(943.258) (102,029)
(42.496) 13,016,404
(97.711) (369,614)
7,419,460 48,118,119
$674.638.948 $780.181,389

The SCLOMEOEaMyng NOWS 10 e financal statemants are Bnd Ntegrel part of 1y Mpkement
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION » NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS » FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

1. DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS

The Ohio Lottery Commission (Lottery) was established in August, 1974, under Section 3770 of the Ohio Revised
Code (ORC). The Lottery has a nine member board of commissioners appointed by the Governor with the advice
and consent of the Senate. It is classified as an enterprise fund of the State of Ohio (State) and is presented as such
in the State's financial statements.

The Lottery is required by law to transfer to the Lottery Profits Education Fund of the State an amount no less than
30% of the total revenue earned from the sale of lottery tickets. The amounts transferred are determined by the
Director of the Office of Budget and Management and are to be used to help support primary and secondary
educaticn within the State.

The Lottery operates both on-line and instant games. The instant games generated 52.6% and 51.5% of the
Lottery’s revenue from ticket sales and on-line games generated 47.4% and 48.5% of the Lottery's revenue from
ticket sales for the years ended June 30, 1999, and 1998, respectively.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Lottery operates under a series of enterprise funds each using a full accruai basis of accounting. Under this
basis, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred. The three Lottery funds
are: the State Lottery Fund (Lottery Operating Fund); the Deferred Prize Fund; and the Unclaimed Prize Fund.

The Lottery operations are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, ali assets and liabilities associated with the operations of the Lottery are included on the balance

sheet. Operating statements present increases (e.g. revenues) and decreases (e.g. expenses) in total net assets.

Lottery Operating Fund

Revenues for this fund are provided primarily from the sale of Lottery tickets. Receivables from ticket sales are
collected on a weekly cycle, with net proceeds being equal to an individual agent's gross sales less cash prizes paid
and commissions earned. The balance from the Lottery Operating Fund is reduced mainly by the following types of
transactions: (1) operating expenses and all non-deferred prize payments; (2) cash transfers to the Deferred Prize
Fund and the Unclaimed Prize Fund; (3) transfers to the Lottery Profits Education Fund; and (4) transfers to other
State agencies to support centralized services.

Deferred Prize Fund

Revenues for the Deferred Prize Fund are provided through cash transfers from the Lottery Operating Fund for the
purpose of supplying investment principal for funding long-term prize obligations of the Lottery. Expenses of the
Deferred Prize Fund primarily represent deferred prizes.

Unclaimed Prize Fund

The Unclaimed Prize Fund receives cash transfers from the Lottery Operating Fund each month, in an amount equal
to the prizes unclaimed after their cashing eligibility has expired. The balances in this fund are used to: (1) wransfer
cash to the Deferred Prize Fund for the purpose of supplying investment capital for deferred prizes (in the event
moneys are used to finance special games or drawings which offer deferred prizes); (2) voucher expenses for prize
or promotion payments drawn against reserves of funds accumulated for unclaimed prizes; or (3) transfer cash to the
Lottery Profits Education Fund.
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION « NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS » FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

Investments

The Lottery adopted the provisions of Statement No. 31 * Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certamn
{nvestments and External Investment Pools” of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (* GASB™) for the
year ended Junc 30, 1998. Accordingly, the Lottery’s investments are stated at fair value (based on quoted market
prices) in the accompanying comparative balance sheet and the change in the fair value of the investments is
recorded as investment income along with the interest earned on the investments.

The Lottery has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio). STAROhio is an
mvestment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s office which aliows governiments within the state to pool their
funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does
operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAROhio
are valued a1t STAROhio’s share price which 1s the price at which the investment could be sold.

Allowznce for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 1999 and 1998, of $286,371 and $237,568, respectively, are based
on an analysis of historical collection experience for accounts receivable which considers the age of the receivable
and current economic conditions.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent amounts restricted for the payment of deferred prize awards. Upon the awarding of an
annuity prize, amounts equal to the present value of the future prize payments are deposited with the Treasurer of
the State of Ohio (State Treasurer). The Lottery is either credited with an equity in the State of Ohio Common Cash
and Investments Account equal to the amounts deposited or specific State investments are identified and dedicated
10 the repayment of deferred prizes. Amounts necessary to fund deferred prizes awarded shortly before the end of
the fiscal year, that will be used to acquire additional equity in State of Qhio general investments in the succeeding
year, if any, are recorded as amounts “due from unrestricted assets” in the accompanying balance sheets,

Property and Equipment

Equipment is stated on the basis of historical cost. Accumulated depreciation is determined by depreciating the cost
of the assets over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.

The estimated useful tife for ticket issuing equipment is two to five years. The estimated useful life for all other
equipment can range from five to fifieen years. Approximately 82.35% and 88.97% of the net book value of

equipment relates to tickel issuing equipment at June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization are
removed from the accounts and any resulting loss is reflected in non-operating expense in the period of disposal.

Property and equipment (including assets held under capital leases) at June 30, 1999 and 1998 consisted of

June 30, 1999 June 30, 1998
Cost:
Machinery and Equipment $69,100,084 $68.686,487
Vehicles ) 3,268,251 3.311,181
Total Property and Equipment , 72,368,335 71.997.668
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (50.691,434) (38,382.621)
Net Fixed Assets $21,676,901 $£33,615.047
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OHIC LOTTERY COMMISSION » NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

Since the year ended June 30, 1994, the Lottery has entered into different capital leases for gaming equipment and
computer software. In February 1999, a final installment was paid on one of the capital leases leaving a carrying
value of $17.5 million. The assets and liabilities under the lease are recorded at the present value of the minimum
fease payments. The carrying value of the capital lease assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives. In
accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) No. 13, the Lottery is required to disclose the

following information regarding capital leases:

Capital Leases
Gross Assets and Accumulated Amortization

June 30, 1999 June 30, 1998

Initial Carrying Value:
Computer Equipment and Systems $17,536,097 $£54,559,874
Accumulated Amortization (14,328,497) (28,631,770)
Net Capital Leases $£3,207.600 $25,928,104

Capital Leases
Future Minimum Lease Payments and Present Values of the Remaining Minimum Lease Payments

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, M
2000 1,165,151
2001 1,165,151
2002 1,165,151

Total Minimum Lease Payments 3,495,453

Imputed Interest (303,812)

Present Value of Remaining Minimum Lease Payments $3,191,641

Deferred Prize Awards

Prize awards, that are payable in installments over future years, are recorded at their present values based upon
interest rates provided to the Lottery by the State Treasurer. The interest rates represent the expected long-term rate
of return on the assets restricted for the payment of deferred prize awards. Once established for a particular deferred
prize award, the interest rate does not fluctuate with changes in the expected long-term rate of return. The

difference between the present value and gross amount of the obligations is amortized over the terms of the
obligations using the interest method and the amortization is recognized as a non-operating expense.

Deferred Revenue

Advanced wagers may be placed for all on-line games. Sales relating to future draws are recorded as deferred
revenue when received. Sales revenue is recognized during the month in which the related drawings occur.
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION » NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS » FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

Bonuses and Commissions

Agents receive a commission of 5.5% based on their total sales. Cashing bonuses are paid on a weekly basis and
equal 1% of all redecemed tickets. An additional .5% is awarded to agents if their cash-to-sales ratio is 50% or
greater. A $5 claiming bonus is awarded to agents for completing a claim form for a prize valuing more than $599.
Selling bonuses range from $500 to $10,000 and are awarded to agents for selling Super Lotto, Kicker, and Buckeye
5 jackpot winners, as well as Cash Explosion Game Show winning tickets.

Compensated Absences

In conformity with GASB Statement No. 16, the Lottery accrues all types of ieave benefits as eamed by its
employees.

Employees of the Lottery eamn vacation Ieave, sick leave, and personal leave at various rates within limits specified
under collective bargaining units or under law. Generally, employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 3.1 hours
every two weeks for the first five years of employment, up to a maximum rate of 9.2 hours every two wecks after 25
years of employment. Employees may accruc a maximum of threc years vacation leave credit. Al termination or
upon other separation from the Lottery, employees are paid at their hourly rate for 100 percent of unused vacation
leave, personal leave, and compensatory time.

Sick leave for all full-time employees is accumulated at a rate of 3.1 hours every two weeks. Upon retirement or
other separation from the Lottery, a union employee who has a minimum of five years or an exempt employee who
has a minimum of one year of service, can receive payment for their unused sick leave at 50 percent of their hourly
rate.

Fund Equity

The reservation of fund equity represents the portion of fund equity that is legally segregated for the payment of
deferred prizes. The reserve amount represents the excess of the assets restricted for the payment of deferred prizes
over the related liabitity for deferred prize awards. The portion of the fund equity reserve that is attributable to the
unrealized appreciation on the Lottery's restricted investments is presented separately on the accompanying
comparative balance sheet in order to disclose the additional fund equity that has been recorded due to the
implementation of Statement No.31 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (sec¢ the ™ Investments”
section of this footnote).

Risk Management

The Lottery is exposed to various risks of loss related 1o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to ecmployvees; and natural disasters. The Lottery generally retains the risk of toss. The
Lottery also operates a self insurance program for third party habilities. The amount of loss arising from these risks
was not significant for the years ended June 30. 1999 and 1998. No significant payments were made or liabilities
recorded during the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 due to self-insured risks.

The Lottery pays a premium to the State for workers' compensation benefits. Professional liability, excluding
Commuissioners, is protected with a blanket bond from Acordia Mid-Atlantic Specialty with an aggregate coverage
totaling $250,000 and a deductible of $1.000. The Department of Administrative Services (DAS) Risk Management
covers each Commissioner at a maximum of $10.000, $90,000 aggregate, with no deductible per Commissioner.

Upon inception, Conventional Agents are required to carry a bond of $5,000 and On-Line Agents are required to
carry a bond of $20.000. On a yearly basis, the agents’ required coverage is based on an evaluation of their average
annual sales.

The Lotterv pays a premium assessed by DAS 1o cover potential hability related to motor veticle damage for a
maximum of $1,000,000. The Lottery retains the risk for any Lability exceeding this limit.
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION « NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS » FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

The State provides an option to eligible Lottery employees to participate in the OhioMed Health Plan, which was
established Juiy 1, 1989, as a fully self-insured health benefit plan. The plan is administered by Medical Mutual of
Ohio under a claims administration contract with the State. The Lottery and its participants are charged a share of
the costs for claims settlement based on the number of employees opting for plan participation and the type of
coverage selected by participants. Employees contribute $16.44 for single and $45.12 for family coverage per
month and the Lottery contributes $147.95 for single and $406.03 for family coverage per month for each eligible
employee. Premiums are accounted for in the State of Ohio's Benefits Trust Fund. In the event that liabilities
exceed premiums paid, assessed premiums would be increased in the succeeding year. The fund balance has
expertenced a surplus in recent years which has reduced premiums assessed to participants and eliminated the need
for the Lottery to record a liability for these benefits. The Lottery’s total contributions to the ChioMed Health Plan
were $609,405 and $626,350 for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

The State has contracted with 11 various types of Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO). Lottery employees
are eligible to participate in the plans available in their geographic area of residence. HMO claims are paid for by
the respective HMO without transfer of risk to the State or the Lottery. Premiums are conmtracted individuatly
between each HMO and the State of Ohio's Benefits Trust Fund.

Settled claims have not exceeded the Lottery’s insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

Budgetary Accounting and Control

As a Department of the State of Ohio, the Lottery is required to submit through the Governor a biennial budget to
the Ohio General Assembly (“ General Assembly™). Biennially, the General Assembly approves the appropriations
which are provided in annual amounts.

The Lottery’s official budget, as adopted by the Legislature, is based upon accounting for certain transactions on the
basis of cash receipts and disbursements. - Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and
other commitments for expenditures are recorded as expenditures when the purchase commitment is made, is
employed for budgetary purposes. Unliquidated encumbrances are generally canceled four months after the end of
the fiscal year. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the biennium for which they were appropriated.
The major differences between the budget basis and the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) basis of
accounting are:

- Prizes which are not vouchered are not budgeted;

- Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when eamed (GAAP);

- Expenses (including deferred prizes) are recorded when paid in cash or encumbered (budget) as opposed to
when the liability is incurred (GAAP);

- The budget basis excludes depreciation and amortization, as well as gains and losses on the disposition of
equipment.

The Lottery maintains budgetary control by not permitt.ing the total expenditures to exceed appropriations without
approval of the General Assembly except for vouchered prize awards for which appropriation amendments may be
approved by the Chio Office of Budget and Management and unvouchered prize expenses which are not budgeted.
Certain budget amendments were adopted during the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998.
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Financial and Reporting for Proprietary Activities

The Lottery has adopted GASB Statement No. 20, * Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprictary Funds and
Other Governmental Units That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.” The Lottery has elected not to apply FASB
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board Opinions issued after November 30. 1989. The Lottery will
continue applying all applicable pronouncements issued by the Governmental Accounting |Standards Board.

Securities Lending

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 28 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Securities Lending
Transactions ", the Lottery reports cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and any investments
made with that cash as assets in the accompanying comparative balance sheet. Liabilities to return the collateral o
the borrower are also recognized. Securities received as collateral in connection with securities lending activities
are not recorded as the assets and liabilities of the Lottery because the Lottery does not have the ability to pledge or
sell the securities without a borrower default. The costs of securities lending transactions are reported as expenses
in the accompanying comparativc statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings.

3. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 9, the Lottery has prepared a Statement of Cash Flows
for the years ended Junc 30, 1999, and 1998. The Lottery considers the Equity in State of Ohio Common Cash and
Investments Account and highly liquid investments, with a maturity of 90 days or less from the date of purchase, to
be cash equivalents. During fiscal year 1999, the Ohio Lottery Commission changed the method of presenting its
statement of cash flows from the indirect method to the direct method, which is encouraged by GASB No. 9. The
Office of Budget and Management advised this change in anticipation of the GASB adoption of a new reporting
requirement specified in its Financial Reporting Model Project.

Non cash items included in investment income in 1998 were $53,210,029 of unrealized gains. Unrealized net losses
on investments in the amount of $34,754,325 were recorded in 1999,

4. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Lottery maintains cash on deposit at a commercial bank and with the State Treasurer. The Lottery is authorized
by State statutes to invest its moneys in certificates of deposit, money market accounts, the State Treasurer's
investment pool (STAROhio) and obligations of the United States govemment or certain agencies thereof. The
Lottery may also enter into repurchase agreements with any eligible depository for periods not to exceed thirty days
and is also perminted to engage in security lending transactions with qualified broker-dealers.

Public depositories must give security for all public funds on deposit. These institutions may either specifically
collateralize individual accounts in lieu of amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
may pledge a pooi of government securities the face value of which is at least 110% of the total value of public
moneys on deposit at the institution. Repurchase agreements must be secured by the specific government securities
upon which the repurchase agreements are based. These securities must be obligations of or guaranteed by the
United States government, and mature or be redeemable within five years of the date of the related repurchase
agreement. State law does not require security for public deposits and investments 1o be maintained in the Lottery's
name.

Deposits
As of June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of the Lotiery's deposits was $362,657 and the bank balance was
$362,702, the difference representing normal reconciling items. Of the bank balance, $100,000 was covered by the

FDIC insurance. The remaining $262,702 was uninsured and uncollateralized as defined by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.
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Investments

The Lottery's investments at June 30, 1999 are detailed below and are categorized to give an indication of the level
of credit risk associated with the Lottery’s custodial arrangements at year end. Category 1 includes investments that
are insured, registered, or held by the Lottery or its agent in the Lottery’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured or
unregistered investments held by the counterparty’s trust department or its agent in the Lottery's name. Category 3
includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty, its trust department, or its agent, but not
in the Lottery or State’s name.

Total Market/

Category 1 Category 2 Category 3  Carrying Value
Investments Categorized:

U.S. Government and agency obligations - -- $283,451,293  $283,451,293

Securities lending collateral:
Repurchase agreements......, $618,043,478 -- -~ $618,043,478
Corporate bonds and notes. . 208,635,230 -- - 208,635,230
Commercial Paper 24,726,026 24,726,026
$851,404,734 - $283,451,293 $1,134,856,027

Investments not Categorized:

Investments held by broker-dealers under security loans-

U.S. government & agency obligations..............ocoeeeiiiiiiiiiiieiieecceeneeee, 960,303,641
Equity in State of Ohio common cash and investments
account {including $114,983,777 of securities Ient).........ooovvvvvrernieeeeeeeeeeansenns 156,504,373

Collateral on loaned securities - Lottery's ratable aliocation
of cash collateral received on securities loans made from

the State of Ohic common cash and investments account..............oceeevveeoenrnnnes. 114,983,777
Investment in Treasurer of State investment pool (STAR Ohio)........ccccooeeeeeiiini, 119,790,160
Securities lending collateral - mutual funds ........cccccciieiiiiiiiii . 898,884
INVESTMENL COMITACTLS ........iieeiiee e e e e e e e e e e 123,116,250

Total INVESIMENS ......ovve e e $2,610,453,112

The “Equity in State of Ohio common cash and investments,” “Collaterai on loaned securities,” *Investment in
Treasurer of State investment pool (STAROhio),” and mutual fund accounts have not been categorized because
these accounts tepresent investment pools. Equity in the pools is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical
or book entry form. Information regarding the classification of the pools’ investments and deposits by credit risk
may be found in the State of Ohio Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
Investments held by broker-dealers under securities loans are also not categorized pursuant to the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 28. '

The total carrying amount of deposits and investments, as of June 30, 1999, categorized and disclosed in this note is
$2,610,815,769. This amount can be reconciled to the balance sheet as follows:
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Deposits Investments Total

Unrestricted Assets:

Cash ... $362.657 -- $362,657

Equity in State of Ohio common cash and investments *.... - $117,228,373 117,228,373

Collateral on lent SECUTITES ............coooevvvrmvuinnnn. e -- 86,361,923 86.361,923

Other INVESIMENIS * ... - 11,850,000 11,850,000
Restricted Assets:

Equity in State of Ohio common cash and investments * ...... -- 39,276,000 39,276,000

Dedicated State of Ohio investments .............................. --1,351,695,094 1,351,695,094

Collateral on lent securities ...........cooviiiiiianieiianas - 1,004,041,722 1,004,041,722
Total carrying amount per June 30, 1999 balance sheet $362,657 $2,610,453,112 $2,610,815,769

* Represents a cash equivalent.

Securities Lending Transactions

The Lottery Commission through the Treasurer of State’s Investment Department participates in a securities lending
program for securities included in the " Equity in State of Ohio common cash and investments” and " Dedicated
State of Ohio investment™ accounts. The lending program, authorized under Section 135.143, Ohio Revised Code,
i5 administered by a custodial agent bank, whereby certain securities are transferred to an independent broker-dealer
(borrower) in exchange for collateral. The Lottery has minimized its ¢xposure to credit risk due to borrower
default by requiring the custodial agent to ensure that the lent securities are collateralized at no less than 102 percent
of the market value.

For loaned contracts the Treasurer executes on the Lottery’s behalf, not more than 15 percent of the State’s cash and
investment portfolio can be lent to a single broker-dealer.

During the fiscal year, the Treasurer lent U.S. government and agency obligations in exchange for collateral
consisting of cash and /or U.S. government obligations. The Lottery cannot sell securities received as collateral
unless the borrower defaults. At June 30, 1999, the collateral the Lotiery had received for securities lent consisted
entirely of cash, some of which had been temporarily invested by the Lottery in various securities. The Lottery
invests cash collateral in short-term obligations, which have a weighted average maturity of 12 to 13 days and
generally match the maturities of the securities loans at year end. Loan contracts do not provide any loss
indemnification by securities lending agents in cases of borrower default; however, during fiscal year 1999, the
Lottery did not experience any losses due 1o credit or market risk on securities lending activitics. The Lottery did
not experience any losses on securitics lending transactions resulting from the default of a borrower or lending
agent, therefore, there were no recoveries during fiscal year 1999 duc to prior-period losses.
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5. PRIZE AWARDS

Prize awards payable from restricted assets as of June 30, 1999 and 1998 consisted of the following:

June 30, 1999 June 30, 1998
Current portion - face amount $167,507,274 $163,195,495
Less: Unamortized discount (92,564,902) (94,561,168)
Current portion - present value 74,942,372 68,634,327
Long Term portion - face amount 2,106,280,777 2.150,675,627
Less: Unamortized discount (823,503,047 (861,547.356)
Long Term portion - present value 1,282,777,730 1,289,128,271
Total Prize Awards $1,357,720,102 $1,357,762,598

Interest rates used to determine the present values ranged from 4.0% to 11.69%. The present value of future
payments from restricted assets for deferred prize awards as of June 30, 1999, is summarized as follows:

Year Ending June 30,

2000 $167,507,274
2001 167,171,037
2002 ’ 167,411,274
2003 167,165,549
2004 163,731,508
2005 through 2009 644,167,672
2010 through 2014 377,539,374
2015 thereafter 419,094,363
Subtotal 2,273,788,051
Unameortized discount (916,067,949)
Net Prize Liability $1,357,720.102

Prize liabilities are reduced by an estimate of the amount of prizes that will ultimately be unclaimed. The Lottery is
required by law to award prizes to holders of winning lottery tickets equal to, as nearly as is practicable, fifty
percent of total revenues from the sale of lottery tickets. The prize structure of certain games played exceeded this
percentage; accordingly, additional amounts have been allocated for prize awards. These amounts approximated
$187 million and $147 million for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

6. PENSIONS - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The Lottery contributes to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio {(PERS), a cost-sharing, multiple
employer, public employee retirement system administered by the Public Employees Retirement Board. PERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of tiving adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code. PERS issues a stand alone financial report. That report may be obtained by writing to the Public
Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 466-2085 or
1-800-222-PERS (7377).
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Plan members are required 1o contribute 8 5 percent of their annual covered salary to fund pension obligations and
the Lottery is required to contribute 13.31 percent. Contributions are authorized by State statute. The Lottery’s
required contributions 10 PERS for the vears ended June 30. 1999, 1998. and 1997 were $2,088.367. $2,020.540
and $1,975,296, respectively. equal to the required contribution for each year.

7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 6, PERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age
and service retirants with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit and to primary survivor recipients of
such retirants. Health care coverage for disability recipients is available. The heaith care coverage provided by the
retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

A portion of each employer’s contributions to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health care. The
Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions. The 1999 employer contribution rate
for state employees was 13.31% of covered payroil; 4.2% was the portion used to fund health care. During 1997,
the Retirement Board adopted a new calculation method for determining employer contributions applied to OPEB.
Under the new method, effective January 1, 1998, employer contributions, equal to 4.2 percent of member covered
payroll, are used to fund health care expenses. Under the prior method, accrued liabilities and normal cost rates
were determined for retiree health care coverage. In Fiscal Year 1999 and 1998, $659,08% and $644,976,
respectively, of the Lottery’s total coniributions to PERS were used for postretirement benefits. At June 30, 1999,
the Lottery was not responsiblie for paying premiums, contributions, or claims for OPEB under PERS for any
retirees, terminated employees, or other beneficiaries. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority
requiring public employers to fund postretirement health care through their contributions to PERS.

OPEB is financed through employer contributions and investment eamnings thereon. The contributions aliocated to
retiree health care and medicare, along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in
health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely. Total PERS expenditures for
OPEB during 1998 (the latest information available) were $441 million. As of December 31, 1998, the unaudited
net assets available for future OPEB payments were $9.4 billion. The number of PERS benefit recipients eligible
for OPEB at December 31, 1998 was 115,579.

8. LITIGATION

The Lottery is a party to various legal proceedings. A hability for a claim is established if information indicates that
it is probablc that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss is
reasonably estimable. In the opinion of management and the Office of the Attorney General of the State of Ohio,
the ultimate outcome of such proceedings will not have a matenial, adverse effect on the Lottery’s financial position.

9. TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER STATE ENTITIES

During the course of normal operations, the Lottery has numerous transactions with various other State entities.
Total operating expenses recognized for services provided by other State agencies are summarized as follows for the
years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively:

1999 1998
Department of Administrative Services (DAS) Expenditures: ’
Telecommunications $740,989 $4,106,239
Computer 967,655 1,085,667
Rent 1,052,044 1,050,877
Printing 70,323 57,380
Miscellaneous 494 559 622518
Total DAS Expenditures 3,325,570 6,922,681
Other Agency Expenditures 397,511 462,932
Total Expenditures $3.723.081 $7385613
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Lottery operates three enterprise funds. The Operating Fund provides the basic operating needs for the Lottery.
Revenues are provided primarily from the sales of Lottery tickets and expenses are composed primarily of prize
payments, administration expense and payments to the Lottery Profits Education Fund. The Deferred Prize Fund
receives cash transfers from the Operating Fund for the purpose of providing investment principal for funding long-
term prize obligations. The Unclaimed Prize Fund receives cash transfers from the Lottery Operating Fund equal to
the amount of prizes that are unclaimed after their cashing eligibility has expired. The balance in the fund is used for
the payment of special higher tier prizes at the discretion of the Executive Director. Selected segment information

for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 is as follows:

Operating Deferred Prize  Unclaimed Prize

Fiscal Year 1999 Fund Fund Fund TOTAL
Ticket Sales $2,144,726,310 - - $2,144,726,310
Depreciation and Amortization 13,631,498 - - 13,631,498
Amortization of Deferred Prize Liabilities - 99,203,818 - 99,203,818
Operating Income (Loss) 737,076,535 {64,857,047) (5,000,000} 667,219,488
Operating Transfers In (Out) (103,558,013) 76,664,536 26,893 477 0
Payments to the Lottery

Profits Education Fund 671,302,701 - 25,000,000 696,302,701
Net Income (32,839,781) (34,162,514) (1,805,439 {68,807,734)
Property/Equipment: Additions 1,923,902 - - 1,923,902
Property/Equipment: Disposals 1,553,235 - - 1,553,235
Net Working Capital 88,933,681 1,326,187,813 42,689,176 1,457,810,670
Increase in Cash &

Cash Equivalents (40,520,308) 17,122,688 (1,769,775) (25,167,395)
Total Assets 197,791,526 2,405,171,907 73,873,302 2,676,836,735
Non-Current Liabilities 4,187,999 1,282,777,730 - 1,286,965,729
Total Fund Equity 106,422,583 43,410,083 42,689,176 192,521,842

Operating Deferred Prize  Unclaimed Prize

Fiscal Year 1998 Fund Fund Fund TOTAL
Ticket Sales $2,195,796,964 - - $2,195,796,964
Depreciation and Amortization 14,048,171 - - 14,048,171
Ameortization of Deferred Prize Liabilities - 100,689,547 Co- 100,689,547
Operating Income (Loss) 817,201,476 (80,138,206} (5,000,000} 732,063,270
Operating Transfers In (Out) (112,683,716) 80,315,712 32,368,004 0
Payments to the Lontery

Profits Education Fund 695,200,486 - 28,664,253 723,864,739
Net Income 11,365,539 46,559,935 1,284,755 59,210,229
Property/Equipment: Additions 20,548,323 - - 20,548,323
Property/Equipment: Disposals 3,947,998 - - 3,947,998
Net Working Capital 110,714,955 1,366,700,868 44,494 615 1,521,910,438
Increase (Decrease) in Cash &

Cash Equivalents 30,879,148 3,601,295 1,247,597 35,728,040
Total Assets 264,056,105 2,691,120,592 78,337,248 3,033,513,945
Non-Current Liabilities 5,067,638 1,289,128,271 - 1,294,195,909
Total Fund Equity 139,262,364 77,572,597 44,494,615 261,329,576
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11. SUBSEQUENT EVENT :

In May 1999, the Lottery adopted an administrative rule (3770-1-8-01) which allows annuiry prize winners an
opportunity to cash-out their remaining deferred prize payments at a discounted lump sum. This rule is a temporary
change to the Internal Revenue Code to aliow discounted lump sum cash payments to be made to certamn annuity
prize winners without the constraints of * constructive receipt”. The OLC sent nearly 2.000 letters to existing
deferred prize winners notifying them the existence of this option. As of October 15, 1999, nearly 300 have
exccuted this option for a total discounted lump sum value of $97 million. This option has provided a much desired
cash out alternative for annuity winners who did not have a cash option at the time they won or now experience a
changed circumstance from the time they elected the annuity option. The option began July 1. 1999 and expires
December 31, 2000. It will clearly have an impact on the Lottery’s long-term deferred prize award liability.

12. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION :

Centain items in the 1998 financial statements were reclassified to conform to the 1999 presentation. Prior to
1999, other revenue & other expenses were classified as non-operating items. These accounts were reclassified
into the operating section of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings.
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 1999

Lottery Operating Fund - Revenues for this fund are provided primanily from the sale of Lottery
tickets. Expenses of the Lottery Operating Fund are composed mainly of operating expenses and
prize payments including transfers to the Deferred Prize Fund and payments to the State
Education system.

Deferred Prize Fund - Revenues for this fund are provided through cash transfers from the
Lottery Operating Fund for the purpose of providing investment principal for funding long-term
prize obligations. The balance in the Deferred Prize Fund is mainly reduced by vouchered prize
payments. '

Unclaimed Prize Fund - The Unclaimed Prize Fund receives cash transfers from the Lottery
Operating Fund each month, in an amount equal to the prizes unclaimed after the cashing
eligibility has expired. The balances in this fund are used for transfers or vouchered prize
payments.
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ASSETS: OPERATING DEFERRED UNCLAIMED TOTAL
Current Assets:

Cash $362,657 $0 $0 $362.657

Equity in State of Ohio common cash and investments 74,611,517 0 42,616,856 T 117,228,373

Collateral on lent securities 55,177,797 1] 31,184,126 86,361,923

Other investmenis 11,850,000 0 0 11,850,000

Receivables - Net of atlowance for doubtful accounts 28,350,769 0 0 18,350,769

Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,761,885 0 72.320 5,834,205
Total Current Assets 176,114,625 0 73,873,302 249,987,927
Restricted Assets:

Equity in State of Ohio commeon cash and investments 0 39,276,000 [i] 39,276,000

Dedicated State of Ohio investments 0 1,351,695,004 1] 1,351,695,094

Cotlateral on lent securities 0 1.004,041,722 0 1,004,041,722

Interest receivable [A] 10,159,091 i} 10,159.0%1
Total Restricted Assets 1] 2,405,171,907 Q 2,405,171,907
Equipment:

Fixed assets - Net of accumulated depreciation 21,676,901 0 0 21,676.901
TOTAL ASSETS $197,791,526 $2,405,171,907 $73.873,302 $2.676,836,735
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY:

Current Liabilities - (Payable from current assets):

Obligations under securities lending program $55,177,797 30 $31.184,126 $86,361.923

Prize awards payable 20,077,115 1] 0 20,077,115

Accounts and contracts payable 8,002.424 o 0 8,002,424

Due other State of Ohio entities 252,645 1] 0 252,645

Other liabilities 1,429,560 ) Ju] 1,429,560

Deferred revenue 1,240,524 V] 0 1,240,524

Current portion of equipment capital lease obligation 1,000,879 Y] 0 1,000,879
Total Current Liabilities - (Payable from current assets) 87.180.944 0 31,184,126 118,365,070
Current Liabilities - (Payable from restricted assets):

Obligations under securities lending program 0 1,004,041,722 0 1.004,041,722

Deferred prizes payable - Net of unamortized discount 0 74,942,372 0 74,942,372
Total Current Liabilities - (Payable from restricted assets) 0 1,078,984.0%4 0 1.078,984,094
Long-Term Liabilities: ’

Deferred prizes payable - Net of unamortized discount 0 1,282,771.,730 0 1,282,717.,730

Long-term ponion of equipment capital lease obligation 2,190,762 0 0 2,190,762

Compensated absences and other long-term liabilities 1,997,237 (1] 0 1,997,237
Total Long-Term Liabilities 4,187,999 1,282,771.130 0 1.286,965,729
TOTAL LIABILITIES 91,368,943 2,361,761,824 31,184,126 2.484,314.893
FUND EQUITY - Retained Earnings:

Unreserved 106,422,583 0 42,689.176 149,111,759

Reserved - deferred prizes 0 24,954,379 1] 24.954.379

106,422,583 24,954,379 42,689,176 174,066,138

Additional Reserve for Deferred Prizes - net unrealized

appreciation on restricted investments 0 18,455,704 0 18,455,704
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 106,422,583 43,410,083 . 42,689,176 192,521,842
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 5197,791.526 $2,405,171,907 $73.873,302 $2,676,836,735

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, TRANSFERS AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS BY FUND
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

OPERATING DEFERRED UNCLAIMED TOTAL

REVENUE: .

Ticket Sales 2.144.726.310 b+ 0 2.144 726,310

Other Revenue 3,965,014 1.807 488 0 5.772.502
Total Operating Revenue 2.148.691.324 1,807 488 0 2.150,498.812
EXPENSES:
Prizes, Bonuses and Commission Expense:

Prize Awards 1,188,101,803 66,664,535 5.000.000 1.259.766.338

Bonuses and Commissions 134.614.180 0 0 134,614,180
Total Prizes, Bonuses and Commission Expense 1,322,715,983 oh.664.535 5.000.000 1.394 380,518
Operating Expenses:

Personal Services 54.333 881 0 0 54,333,881

Mamntenance 20,795,857 0 0 20,795,857

Deprecianon 13.631.498 0 0 13,631,498

Other Expenses 137.570 0 ) 137,570
Total Operating Expenses 88,898 806 0 0 88.898.806
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) 737,076,535 {64 B57.047) * (5.000,000) 667,219 488
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):

interest Income 5.770.178 114447192 1,301,084 121.518.451

Amortzauon of Deferred Prize Liabilities 0 (99,203 818y - 0 (99.203,818)

Loss on Equipment Disposal (230,551 0 0 (230,551)

Interest Expense - Borrower Rebaies ] (60.595.099) 4] (60,595.099)

Agent Fees 0 (618.278) 0 (618,278)

Interest Expense on Capual Lease (595.226) 0 1] (595.226)

Payments to the Lottery Profits Education Fund {671.302.701) 0 {25.000,000) (696,302,701)
Total Non-Operating Expenses [666.358,303) (45.970,003) {23.698.916) 1736,027,222)

70,718,232 (110,827,050} [28,698,916) (68,807,734

TRANSFERS:

Transfers 1o the Deferred Prize Trust Fund (871) (76,664, 536) 76,664 536 0 0

Transfers 1o the Unclaimed Prize Fund (872) (26.893.477) 0 26.893.477 0
Total Transfers (103.558.013) 76,664,536 , 26,893 477 0
NET INCOME (LOSS) (32,839,781) (34.162.514) (1,805.439) {68.807,734)
RETAINED EARNINGS JULY 1 139,262,364 77.572.597 . 44,494 615 261.329.576
RETAINED EARNINGS JUNE 30 $106.422,583 $43.410,083 $42,689,176 $192,521,842

The accompanying noles (o the financial statements are an irdegral part of this statement.
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT -

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION » SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION BY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments for Prize Awards
Cash Payments for Bonuses and Commissions
Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees
Other Operating Revenues
Other Operating Espenses

Net Cash Provided by (used) in Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments to the State of Ohio
Inter-Fund Transfers
Amonization of Deferred Prize Liability

Net Cash Provided (Used) by NonCapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of Property and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment
Repayment of Equipment Obligation

Interest Paid on Equipment Obligation

Net Cash Used by Capital and Retated Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment Income Received
Interest Expense (Borrower Rebates) and Agent Fees
Proceeds from the Sale or Mawrity of Dedicated State of Ohio Invesmnems
Acquisition of Investments
Cash Collateral received under Securities Lending Activities
Investmem of Securitics Lending Cash Collateral

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD:

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH USED

IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income (Loss}

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) o net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
Prize Awards Payable
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Deferred Prize Awards Payable
Compensated Absences and Other Liabilities

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes to the financial s are an i part of this

DEFERRED  UNCLAIMED

OPERATING PRIZE PRIZE TOTAL
$2,138,951.478 50 $0  $2.138,951.478
(1,187,455,763) (66,707,031} (5,000,000)  (1,259,162,794)
{134,664,002) 0 0 (134,664,002)
(56.316,965) 0 0 (56,316.965)
(19,803,701) 0 0 (19.803.701)
3,965,014 1,807,488 0 5,772,502
(137,570} 0 0 (137,570)
744,538_491 (64,899 543) {5,000,000) 674,638,948
(671,302,701} 2 (25.000,000)  (696,302,701)
(103,558,013} 76,664,536 26,893,477 o
0 (99,203 818) ] {99,203 _818)
(774,860.714) (22,539,282) 1,893,477 (795,506,519)
(1.923,902) 0 0 (1,923,902}
0 0 ¢ ¢
(13,482,266) 0 0 (13,482.266)
(595,226} 0 0 (595,226)
(16,001 394) 0 0 {16,001,394)
5.803,309 110,813,986 1,336,748 117,954,043
0 (61,213,377 0 (61,213,377
0 816,620,474 0 816,620,474
0 (761,659,570) 0 (761,659,570}
55,177,797 1,004,041,722 31,184,126  1,090,403,645
(35,177.797)  (1,004.041.722)  (31,184.126) _ {1.090.403 645)
5,803,309 104,561,513 1,336,748 111,701,570
(40,520,308) 17,122,688 (1,769,775) (25,167.395)
127,344 482 22.153.312 44,386,631 193,884,425
386,824 174 $39.276.000 $42.616.856 __ $168,717,030
737,076,535 (64,857.047) (5.000,000) 667,219,488
13,631,498 0 0 13,631,498
{4.831.579) 0 0 (4,831,575)
513.527 0 0 513,527
646,040 0 0 646,040
(1,456,565} o 0 {1.456,565)
(943.258) 0 0 (943,258)
0 (42,496) 0 {42,496)
©1,711) 0 0 (97,711)
7,461,956 {42,496) 0 7,419.460
$744,538,491 {364,899 543) (§5,000,000) 5674638 048
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, EXPENSES, AND PAYMENTS BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAADP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 (In millions)

RECEIPTS
Ticket Sales
Other Revenue

Total Reciepts

EXPENSES
Payroll and Personal Services
Maintenance and Supplies
Equipment
Contracts
Vouchered Prizes, Bonuses and Commissions
Annuity Prizes
Unclaimed Prizes

Total Expenses

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENSES

PAYMENTS IN (OUT):
Payments to Lottery Profits Education Fund

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER
EXPENSES AND PAYMENTS

APPROVED
BUDGET (1) ACTUAL VARIANCE
$2,204.5 $2,144.7 ($59.8)
79.1 102.7 23.6
2,283.6 2,247 4 (36.2)
20.9 20.1 0.8
27.0 16.9 10.1
3.8 2.4 1.4
612 51.4 9.8
195.6 184.9 10.7 ()
170.0 167.9 2.1
50 5.0 0.0
483.5 448.6 4.9
1,800.1 1,798.8 (1.3)
(713.8) (696.3) 17.5
$1,086.3 $16.2

§1,102.5

(1) Reported budgeted amounts are as originally adopted and amended by the General Assembtly and the

Office of Budget and Management.

(2) Vouchered prizes do not include those prizes cashed at participating agent and bank locations.
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION + COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT + FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION « YEAR 2000 READINESS DISCLOSURE

The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and other equipment
that may adversely affect the Ohio Lottery Commissions’ (Lottery) operation in the year 2000.

The Lottery recognized the importance of this issue early and began action in the awareness phase by the beginning
of Fiscal Year 1997. Three (3) areas were identified as critical for assessment and remediation: 1) the on-line
gaming system; 2) the instant ticket gaming system; and 3) the administrative support systems. The most criticai
area of operations was the gaming system.

1. On-Line Gaming System: By November 1996, the Lottery had meetings with other lotteries and with the
gaming vendor, GTECH, to review a new gaming system that would substantially enhance capability and
would be Year 2000 compliant. This system would replace a system nearing its full capacity with one that is
modularly integrated with graphic user interface and a scalable platform. The New Central Computer System,
PRO:SYS was ready for testing by April 1997. It was installed and went into full production by July 31, 1997.
The Lottery and GTECH believe this system to be Y2K compliant.

2. The Instant Ticket Gaming System was assessed, remediated and tested for Year 2000 compliance and an
upgraded system was in operation by December 1998. At that time, the Lottery had incorporated programming
changes needed to process dates for the Year 2000 and beyond correctly for its gaming systems. This system is
believed to be Y2K compliant.

3. Administrative_support systems: The Lottery had also determined that most of the administrative support
systems used to manage the Lottery were not compliant. Needs were assessed. Specifications were written and
a contract was awarded to Compuware on March 9, 1998. The contract required assessment, remediation and
testing of the administrative support systems to operate and manage this $2.1 billion enterprise. The contract
obligated $206,400 for Fiscal Year 1998 and $280,000 for Fiscal Year 1999. The contract was completed by
December 1998 with all administrative support systems believed to be capable of properly processing dates for
the Year 2000. Efficiencies developed by the contractor in concert with the Lottery and completed the project
at a cost of $331,457.

Additionally, the agency created a plan for assessing and remediating secondary systems including the Local
and Wide Area Networks, the Client Server databases, and the external data interfaces with the Department of
Administrative Services (DAS), Office of Budget and Management (OBM) and National City Bank (NCB).

The State identified 31 systems as mission critical, including the lottery’s on-line and instant gaming systems. To
ensure that needed action had been taken, the Department of Administrative Services (DAS), State of Ohio
contracted for a Year 2000 Independent Verification and Validation Audit Report of the gaming systems of the
Ohio Lottery Commission. Representatives of Logtec, Inc. conducted an on-site review in April 1999 and
attended the full Y2K test of the gaming system performed on July 19, 1999. Logtec, Inc completed a final report
in September which concluded that it is probable that the gaming systems of the Ohio Lottery will process data
correctly in the year 2000.

The report makes five (5) recommendations on areas that do not directly impact the gaming systems, but require
additional effort. The areas are as fotlows:

1) Ongoing Renovation, Upgrades and Testing

GTECH Corporation developed a “Year 2000 Readiness Guide.” The document described YZK issues in
GTECH’S worldwide software and hardware that is common to all of GTECH’S lottery sites. The Lottery should
continue to provide management oversight to ensure GTECH incorporates required changes by January &, 2000.
The OLC is working with GTECH to monitor this progress on an on-going basis.

2) Contingency Planning

A business continuity plan should be developed. GTECH has completed a draft of their corporate contingency
plan. The Chio Lotiery has also prepared a plan for continuity of operations. Eight (8) areas are addressed in
this plan:
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OHIO LOYTERY COMMISSION + COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINARCIAL REPORT - FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION ¢ YEAR 2000 READINESS DISCLOSURE

»Mission critical nawre of the area/service, *Provide procedures for responding to the disruption.
*Potential disruption to the service, +Identification of temporary strategies,
*Risk mitigation, *Procedures for restoring services, and

«Identify the contingency plan and the criteria for activating,  *Explanation of Business Continuity training.

3) Ambiguous Data Display )
The on-line display of the Retailer Summary Report had a data field incorrecily displayed in the PC’s computer
clock. This is a very minor concen. GTECH plans to correct this item in the next screen code revision.

4) Infrastructure/Facilities

The infrastructure for the Lottery's nine (9) regional Offices was checked. Eight (8) of the nine (9) facilities have
letters from their contractors indicating they are Y2K compliant. All PC’s and servers at those sites are belicved to
be compliant. The lottery is planning a site visit to determine the Y2K staws of the final regional office.

5) High-Level Project Plan

The Logtec report recommended that the OLC develop a High-Level Project Plan that contains both OLC and
GTECH Y2K 1asks and responsibilities. That plan would be updated so the OLC can assess what items remain to be
completed for Y2K compliance. This plan has been implemented and lottery management will monitor this plan on
an on-going basis.

- Payroll services: The Department of Administrative Services (DAS) provides payroll processing services for the
lottery. DAS is responsible for remediation and all associated costs with this system. DAS has represented 10 us
that the system has been remediated and at this point the system is in the (esting and validation stage.

Financial Applicatjons: The lottery uses a financial reporting system (CAS) controlled by the Office of Budget &
Management (OBM) for certain accounting information. OBM is responsible for CAS and has represented to the
lottery that the system has been remediated, tested and validated to be year 2000 compliant. The lottery also uses an
internal general ledger software package provided by Solomon Software for financial statement preparation. The
software company has provided Y2K upgrades for this package. This software package is believed 1o be year 2000
compliant.

Banking services: National City Bank provides banking services as well as electronic fund transfer (EFT) of weckly
sales collection via Automated Clearing House (ACH). Processing of EFT data by NCB has been tested and
complies with National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA} guidelines. National City has informed
us that remediation of their mission critical systems has been completed as of December 1998 and testing was
completed by mid 1999.

Utilities: The OLC has contacted the utility companies for each regional location and has confirmed the year 2000
readiness of each facility from the lessors. The utilities at lottery central are provided by the following:

The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Co. (CEI) provides electricity to the lottery. CEI asserts all
critical computer systems are scheduled to be year 2000 compliant.

The City of Cleveland provides water to the lottery, and has not provided assurance to the
lotiery regarding remediation of this system.

Ameritech provides service for most of the telecommunications sysiems af the lottery. Ameritech
provided assurance of year 2000 compliance in April of 1999 for all services provided to the lottery.

The Ohio Loticry Commission also maintains backup power generator capabilities sufficient to run the
gaming system computers and heat/lighting/electricity at lottery headquarters for a minimum of 7 days.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts
will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thercafier. Management cannot assure that the Ohio Lottery 1s
or will be Year 2000 ready, that the Lontery’s remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in pan, or that
parties with whom the Lottery does business will by year 2000 ready.
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1990s

January 1990
» Zipcash system begins to streamline instant ticket validation, 7
» Marketing concept of “Maximum Scratch” begins, Lottery offers more than one instant game ar a time.

July 27, 1990
Cards game goes on sale.

August 1990

Problem gambling program begins.

September 1990
Super Losto 6/53 goes on sale.

Jan. 12, 1991
Super Losto 6/47 goes on sale with cash option, $26-million jackpot cap, and Millionaire-of-the-Month drawings.
April 1992

First instant ticket vending machine (ITVM) insralled.

May 3, 1992

Buckeye 5 (5/37) replaces Cards.

November 1992
First $2 game, Holiday Surprise, sells out in record time.

November 1992
Direct-mail instant ticket promotion has 38 percent redemprion rate.

February 1993
Cash Explosion® instant game sells its one billionth ticket; Lottery offers $1 million prize.

Aug. 2, 1993
First $5 instant game, Anniversary Millions, goes on sale.

February 1994
All state employees begin quality training program.

June 2, 1995
Fiscal year sales top $2 billion milestone.

November 1996
Stocking Stuffer goes on sale, first $10 instant game in U.S.

February 1997
First $3 game, extended-play Bingo, goes on sale.

June, 1999
Red Ball promotion begins for Pick 3.

August 1999
Lottery celebrates 25% anniversary. Mid-day draws begin for Pick 3 and Pick 4.

STATISTICAL SECTION




OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION + COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT + FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION
REVENUES » LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS

(In millions} * Source; Ohio Lottery Commussion

[ FISCAL YEAR |

1990 1991 1992 1993 994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
ON-LINE GAMES

PICK 3 $414.2 S4l17 $411 1 $428.3 $421.0 $446.2 $450.6 $435.6 54211 §$399.4
PICK 4 77.4 79.1 £5.4 91.0 91.9 102.1 108.2 116.5 124 0 1251
BUCKEYE 5 257 122.4 118.2 100.3 873 kLR 73.5 69.9
SUPER LOTTO (6/47) 530.8 451.4 500.0 493.5 310.6 437.8 455.8 - 410.6 84 9 364 4
KICKER 846 71.3 69.5 656 54.3 63.3 667 63.5 60 5 572
CARDsS 24 7 9.3

TOTAL ON-LINE GAMES 1,107.0 1.038.2 1.101.2 1.200.8 1.056.0 1.149.7 1.168.6 1.108.0 1.064.¢  1.016.0

INSTANT GAMES (1} 5i3.9 526.3 584.2 775.7 863.9 1.032.6 1.146.1 1.195.0 1.131.8 1.128.7
TOTAL TICKET SALES: 1,620.9 1.564.8 1.685.4 1,976.5 1.919.9 2.182.3 2.314.7 2.300.0 21958 21447
INTEREST INCOME/ 83.7 99.7 115.6 140 7 115.3 86.1 140.9 163.3 2304 1273

OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL REVENUES $1.704 6 516642 $1.801.0 $2,117.2 32,0352 §2.268.4 $2.4556 §2.463.3 $2.4262 §2.252.0

(1) FY 96-FY 99 Instant lickels are reported as net of free uckets. In pnor years, the amount of free tickets issued was recorded
in ucket sales.

.i SALES BY GAME
LAST TEN{10) FISCAL YEARS

INSTANTGAMES
(44 T0%) T

CARDS 10 18%)

KICKER (3 40%) SUPER LOTTQ (6/47)
122 10%)
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION
ON-LINE GAME SALES « LAST (10) FISCAL YEARS

(In millions) Source: Ohio Lottery Commission
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OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION + COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT - FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 20, 1999 & 1998

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION
REVENUES, EXPENSES & PAYMENTS TO EDUCATION ¢« LAST TEN (10) FISCAL YEARS

{In millions) * Source: Ohio Lottery Commission

FISCAL TICKET PRIZE % BONUSES/ % OPERATING o PAYMENTS TO %
YEAR SALES (1) EXPENSE SALES COMMISSIONS SALES EXPENSES .SALES EDUCATION SALES
1990 $16209 $827 4 51.05% $97 8 6 03% $893 - 551% $644 3 39.75%
1991 15645 8426 53 86% 952 609% 508 5 80% 5837 37.31%
1992 16854 888.2 52.70% 100.4 5.96% 827 4.91% 648 4 3847%
1953 19765 10759 54 43% 1195 6.05% - 10286 5.19% 658 4 3331%
1954 19199 11150 58.08% 1169 6.09% ' 973 507% 652.3 33.98%
1965 21823 12368 56.67% 1334 611% 94 4 433% 656.4 30.08%
1996 23147 12976 56 06% 1456 6.29% 98 397% 7265 31.39%
1997 23000 13122 57 05% 1447 6.29% 927 403% 7485 3254%
1988 (2) 21958 1.2447 56.69% 1378 6.28% 865 3594% 7238 32 96%
1999 21427 12598 58.74% 1346 6.28% 889 415% 696 3 3247%
Total $199047 $111002 85.77% $1.2259 6 16% $9170 461% $6.738 6 33.85%
(1) Sales and Prize Expense for FY 95-39 are shown net of free tickets  In pnior years, the amount of free tickets issued was recorded
in both sales and pnize expense
{2) Cerain items for FY 98 were reclassified to conform to the FY 99 presentation (see note 12).

FY 99 Sales & Expenses

.M g

22500 4

2.000 0 4 ¥
3
1.7%0.0 4—- : ‘ . ____i
;

1.500.0
1.250.0

1.0 0

500

MUTX(

2500

0o
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EXPENSES AND PAYMENTS

{IN MILLIONS)
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| HISTORY OF TRANSFERS TO EDUCATION

w IN MILLIONS * SOURCE: OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION
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QHLO LOTTERY COMMISSION + COMPREMHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT -+ FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

LOTTERY INDUSTRY STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FISCAL YEAR 1998 (1) « IN MILLIONS

POP. Ticket Bonuses/ Net Prizes as  Net locome
Lottery (MILL) Sales Prizes Comm. Expenses Iocome (3) % of Sales % of Sakes
1 NEW YORK 18.2  $3.943.10 $1.993.97 §236.85 319433 $1.528 85 50.57% BIT%
2 MASSACHUSETTS 6.1 3,207.24 2.205.07 181.66 6372 774.88 68.75% 2416%
3 TEXAS 198 3.090.03 1.648.11 154.58 206 87 1.212.52 51 M7 19.24%
4 CALIFORNIA 327 2.2%4.42 1.150.81 151.22 175 35 83475 50.16% 36.38%
§ OHIO 11.2 2,195.80 1,244.72 137.85 86.54 (2) 783.07 56.69% 35.66%
6 FLORIDA 149 2,050.04 1,022.06 116.18 127.55 918.06 49 86% 4. 718%
7 GEORGIA 7.6 1.672.87 902.47 118.72 105.66 335.07 53.95% 33.18%
8 PENNSYLVANIA 12.0 1,668.41 822 68 83.82 63.77 714.63 4931% 42 83%
9 MICHIGAN 9.8 1,637.59 892.67 114.58 71.98 709.23 54.51% a3 N%
10 NEW JERSEY 81 1.630.34 868.41 £9.32 47.74 643.90 53.27% 19 49%
AVERAGE (4) 14.3  $2,338.98 $1,275.10 §138.48 $114.35 $867.50
INDUSTRY AVERAGE 6.2 $896.21 $489.42 $56.70 $51.62 $318.48

(1) Latest Information Available
(2 Amount includes operating expenses only
(3) Before payments to education

(4) Average is for the above ten (10) states only

Source 19398 World Lottery Aimanac
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INDEPENDENT RATING OF LOTTERY

EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS

The International Gaming & Wagering Business IGWB)
magazine conducts an annual analysis of all U.S. lorteries
and publishes the results in their magazine, IGWB is a
respected industry publication which maintains that
effectiveness and efficiency are often conflicting goals and
that lotteries which perform well in both measures are rare.
In fiscal 1998, only Maryland, Michigan, New York and
Ohio made the top ten in all six arcas of analysis, as listed

OHIO LOTTERY COMMISSION - COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT - FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 & 1998

in the tables below. Table 2 is 2 measure of effectiveness,
the ability to penetrate the marketplace. Tables 3 through
7 are all measures of efficiency. All five tables are con-
cerned with the rate of return and the amount of operating
funds expended 1o generate government revenue.

The Ohio Lottery strives to be both effective and
efficient and is pleased to be recognized by an independent
source for achieving the goals of maximizing revenue for
public educartion.

+ Tables reprinted from International Gaming & Wagering magazine, Aprit, 1999.

TOTAL COPIES PRINTED: 350
UNIT COST: $2.68
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Lausche Building, 12cth Floor

STATE OF OHIO 615 Superior Avenue, NW

Cleveland, Qhio 44113
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR
Tt:lcph(mc 216-787-3665

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-626-2297
Facsimiie 216:787-3361

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Ohio Lottery Commission
615 Supernicor Avenue, NW
Cleveland, Ohio 44113

We have audited the financial statements of the Ohic Lottery Commission (the Commission), an enterprise
fund of the State of Ohio, as of and for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, and have issued our report
thereon dated QOctober 28, 1999 in which we noted a change in the method of reporting cash flows. We
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s financial statements are free
of material misstaterment, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Commission's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our apinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Qur
consideration of the interna! control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce
to a relatively iow level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However. we noted
other matters involving the internai control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report,
that we have reported to the management of the Commission in a separate letter dated October 29, 1999.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management and Commissioners,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

JIMF
Auditor o8

October 29, 1999
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